

Minutes of the Athy Municipal District Meeting held at 10.00 am on Monday, 10 March 2025 in the Council Chamber

Members Present: Councillor A Breslin (Cathaoirleach) Councillors V Behan, B

Dooley, M Leigh and I Keatley.

Officials Present: Mr A Dunney (District Manager), Mr K Dunne (District Engineer),

Mr S Wallace (Senior Parks and Landscape Officer), Ms P

O'Rourke (Climate Action Coordinator), Mr L McNeela (Senior Executive Engineer), Mr P Henderson (A/Senior Architect), Ms A

Dutczak (Executive Architect), Ms E Price (Administrative

Officer), Mr D Conlan (Senior Executive Engineer), Mr B

McGrath (Meetings Administrator), Ms A Noone (Meetings

Secretary) and others.

Councillor Breslin proposed a suspension of Standing Orders for thirty minutes to allow the meeting to commence at 10.30 a.m. This was seconded by Councillor Dooley and agreed by all members.

The Cathaoirleach welcomed everyone to the March meeting of the Athy Municipal District and thanked everyone for their patience.

AY01/0325

Declaration of Conflicts or Pecuniary Interests

Declarations of (a) conflicts of interest or (b) pecuniary or beneficial interests under section 177 of the Local Government Act 2001, as amended.



There were no declarations made.

AY02/0325

Minutes and Progress Report

The members considered the minutes of the monthly Athy Municipal District meeting held on Monday, 17 February 2025 and the progress report was noted.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Leigh seconded by Councillor Dooley and agreed by all members that the minutes of the monthly Athy Municipal District meeting held on Monday, 17 February 2025 be adopted and the progress report be noted.

AY03/0325

Municipal District Roadworks Update

The members received an update on the municipal district road works.

National Transport Authority (NTA) - Active Travel Measure Updates

No update since the last Athy Municipal District meeting. Project Team dealing with this.

Department of Transport – Climate Adaption Projects

No projects currently added in Athy Municipal District (MD).

Municipal District Restoration Improvement Works - RI Program

Tenders are currently being prepared for the RI program

Municipal District Restoration Maintenance Works – RM Program

RM program is currently under review

Local Improvement Schemes

No schemes currently confirmed on our schedule

Community Involvement Schemes

No update for 2025.

Footpath Upgrades / Surveys

Tender documents are being finalised to go out to contract.

Signage Works

Continuing our update of signage in the Athy Municipal District.

Local road speed limit signs complete.

Road Markings

To be confirmed with the 2025 budget/ program.

Drainage Works

Several villages have had drainage systems cleaned.

Jetting drainage lines on various roads – ongoing.

Cleaning gullies - ongoing.

Carrying out water cuts along roads – ongoing.

Commenced drainage works to the RI programme.

Road Patching

Carrying out patching along various sections. – ongoing.

Street Sweeping

Street sweeping to areas – ongoing.

Bin collection - ongoing.

Community Works

Civil works complete for interactive well-being facility in Edmund Rice Square

General Maintenance

Hedge cutting complete along the regional road junctions and RI and RM programmed roads.

Winter maintenance ongoing, salting additional areas due to severe weather



The report was noted.

AY04/0325

Athy Residual LPT

The members considered the following residual LPT allocations:

• €9,000 to Scoil Diarmada Parents Association

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Keatley seconded by Councillor Dooley and agreed by all members that the Residual LPT of €9,000 to Scoil Diarmada Parents Association be approved.

AY05/0325

Resurface and Reline Geraldine Road

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Dooley.

That the council resurfaces and relines the Geraldine Road from the traffic lights out towards Athy Golf Club and fixes areas where the footpaths and kerbs have been impacted due to the number of HGVs with many building projects on the road.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Dooley and seconded by Councillor Leigh.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the current developer led projects need to be completed first as they have elements to deliver. The Municipal District Engineer will then upgrade this section of road.

Councillor Dooley advised that he was happy with the positive report. He added that there were plans for more than 200 houses to be built in the area which would increase construction traffic. Residents had contacted him that the road needed work. He accepted the report.



The District Engineer advised that the works were on the agenda but they were waiting for construction to finish first.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Dooley and seconded by Councillor Leigh that the report be noted.

AY06/0325

Works from the R417 to the R418

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Dooley. That the council carries out resurfacing works from the R417 to the R418, through the village of Ballyroe to include footpath restoration, signage updates in the village and a school zone at Scoil Treasa.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Dooley and seconded by Councillor Behan.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that this location is included in the current works programme to be completed.

Councillor Dooley thanked Mr M Kavanagh and the District Engineer. He advised that he had recently met with the school board who were pushing for these works. There was a big project of work happening in the village and looked forward to the works being carried out.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Dooley and seconded by Councillor Behan that the report be noted.

AY07/0325

Safety Issues at the Junction of R448 and R747, Timolin

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Leigh.

That the council addresses safety issues at the junction of R448 and R747, Timolin.



The motion was proposed by Councillor Leigh and seconded by Councillor Dooley.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Municipal District Engineer will investigate the matter to see what works can commence this year.

Councillor Leigh advised that each of the members had previously brought motions relating to this matter. The stopline was invisible at the Crookstown and Timolin junction. Lighting was also an issue and he asked that a Klips report be carried out in that area as soon as possible.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Leigh and seconded by Councillor Dooley that the report be noted.

AY08/0325

Improve Road Surface outside Castledermot Playground, St John's Estate and Plunketstown

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Leigh.

That the council improves the road surface outside Castledermot Playground, St John's Estate and Plunketstown this year.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Leigh and seconded by Councillor Dooley.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that this location is not on this years works programme, a funding stream would have to be identified for these works.

Councillor Leigh advised that the road running adjacent to the park in Castledermot was in dreadful condition, and the drains in Plunketstown needed to be cleaned.

The members raised the following:



- There had been investment in the playground but there were issues with the road surface.
- There was a new development close by that could help with parking situation and alleviate traffic.
- Irish water had previously carried out work in the area and the road was left very patchy.
- The town regeneration team were meeting this week and following those discussions a funding source could be discussed.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Leigh and seconded by Councillor Dooley that the report be noted.

AY09/0325

Works from the Junction of the N78 to the Church at Kilmead

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Breslin.

That the council carries out remedial works including resurfacing from the junction of the N78 to the Church at Kilmead.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Breslin and seconded by Councillor Dooley.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Municipal District Office is currently reviewing a previous design for this area to ascertain what funding is required.

Councillor Breslin advised that money had previously been allocated to the Public Realm team but works never proceeded. She thanked the District Engineer and team and looked forward to works being completed.

Councillor Dooley added that the area needed some works and there was quite a lot of traffic in the area.



Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Breslin and seconded by Councillor Dooley that the report be noted.

AY10/0325

Audit on Signage on the Approach Roads to Athy

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Breslin.

That the council carries out an audit on signage on the approach roads to Athy and removes any outdate signage.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Breslin and seconded by Councillor Behan.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that signage in the Municipal District is currently being reviewed.

Councillor Breslin advised that she had met with Tidy Towns and the District Engineer to discuss plans for the town. The signage into the town was outdated. With the opening of Shackleton, Emily Square, the Barge renovation etc the town needed to look more aesthetically pleasing. The old signage needed to be replaced.

The members raised the following:

- The Blueway and Barrow Way entrances needed updated signage.
- There were outdated signs in the town with business that were no longer in operation, these needed to be replaced.
- New tourism signage to advertise all the town had to offer were needed.

Councillor Breslin added that she had also spoken to the Parks Department regarding new planting for the town.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Breslin and seconded by Councillor Behan that the report be noted.



AY11/0325

Average Time for Lighting Faults to be Fixed

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Dooley.

Can the council confirm what is the average time for lighting faults in this municipal district to be fixed by the new contractor once reported?

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the average length of time from report to repair/replacement is four weeks. However, where ESB attendance is required, the length of time from report to repair/replacement may be longer.

Councillor Dooley advised that he had been inundated with questions on the matter. He understood the difficulty with storms etc. He would raise this matter as a motion. Residents were fatigued by the wait times on long outages.

The report was noted.

AY12/0325

Road Improvements on the Old Foxhill Road

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Leigh.

Can the council confirm if there are plans to carry out road improvements on the Old Foxhill Road, Athy this year?

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that there are currently no plans to carry out road works on this section of road this year.

Councillor Leigh advised that this had been promised as Restoration Improvement Scheme a number of years ago. The residents felt forgotten about. Works had not been carried out on the road in about 30 years.



The report was noted.

AY13/0325

Safety Assessments at Junctions with Temporary Bollards

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Behan.

Can the council provide an update and/or feedback on any safety assessments carried out at junctions in this municipal district where temporary bollards have been recently installed.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Municipal District Office has not received the final report.

Councillor Behan understood that the final report was not in yet but added that silage season would be starting in May which would increase agricultural traffic on the roads. She asked that the report be circulated to members once the office received it.

The District Engineer advised that he hoped to have the report back before the next Municipal District Meeting.

The report was noted

AY14/0325

Surface Issues on the Ballyvass Road, Castledermot

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Behan.

Can the council confirm when it plans to address the surface issues on the Ballyvass Road,

Castledermot?

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members the Municipal District Engineer cannot commit to this work being completed this year. Councillor Behan asked that if works could not be completed this year, that it be put on the schedule for 2026.

The report was noted.

AY15/0325

Parks Work Programme 2025

The members received a presentation from Mr S Wallace on the Parks Works Programme 2025 for their consideration.

Mr S Wallace advised the members of the following:

- In 2024 the following was carried out:
 - Tree Works Programme 400 locations and 780 trees
 - Boundary Fence at Greenhills
 - Outdoor Recreational Strategy
 - The Peoples Park signage and boundary wall repairs.
- The 2025 programme was as below:

Projects:

 Finish signage and boundary wall at The Peoples Park and the Ardrew Amenity Lands Masterplan

Operations:

- o Tree Works
- o Grass Maintenance was the biggest expense.
- o Tree Planting between October to December
- o Roll out more Communications Boards

Planning

- LRD Applications / Planning Applications / Compliance / Part 8s
- o Taking in Charge
- Local Area Plans



 County Development Plan – Allotments Strategy, Parks Assessment Criteria and Amenity Infrastructure

Administration

- Large amount of admin work over 1100 CRMS last year.
- Legal Works
- Two extra staff had been approved for the Parks team.
- One member of staff involved in planning to cover a wide range of applications and also involvement in forward planning issues. Increasing workload and demand.
- They were in the process of filling the technician and graduate post.

The members raised the following:

- Thanked Mr S Wallace and his team for their work, Parks department had been understaffed for years, great to see new staff on the team.
- Very appreciative of the works done.
- Thanked Mr S Wallace for agreeing to an audit of Athy town and working with Tidy Towns.
- Challenge of ivy in the Peoples Park, doing damage to the wall. Residents had removed it.
- Was Ballyroe playground on the agenda?
- Calverstown Tidy Towns were working to get a site for a playgound, any advice would be very beneficial.

Mr S Wallace replied as follows:

- Tackling the ivy was difficult, it would be stripped to remove it.
- Ballyroe was not on the current Play Strategy but agreed to work with the Healthy
 Ireland co-ordinator to see what could be done.

The members received a presentation from Ms. P O'Rourke, Climate Action Co-ordinator in relation to Open Space Management - Alternative Maintenance.

Ms P O'Rouke highlighted the following timelines to the members:

Year	Alternative Maintenance Actions
2019	•formulate a plan of action
2020	 Communications strategy with pilot sites established,
	•mandate by people to move forward
2021	•MU masters research commenced,
	Partners 10 LA's and WI
	Waste grass experiment
2022	 Master research continues with practical and controlled experiments,
	 Advance exploration of circular economy,
	 Further research potential exploration.
2023	Report/Manual Alternative Maintenance
	GAA joins as partner
	PHD commence
2024	●Terrain AI - Commence Phase 2 Grass to Gas
	 PHD ongoing including carbon calculation model
	Wicklow Co Co Joins as partner
2025	•Grass to Gas Dashboard hase 2 project summary - April Full Council Meeting
	PHD final year Alternative Maintenance

Ms P O'Rourke informed the members of the following:

Transect surveys were completed

- Agricultural Sites and Town Park sites were used
- Overall abundance of insects significantly higher on rural sites.
- Bumblebee and Butterfly abundance significantly higher on rural sites. Hoerflies and solitary bees the same.

Transect and Pan Trap surveys combined for Richness

- Overall richness of insects significantly higher on rural sites.
- Butterfly and Hoverfly significantly richer on rural sites

Pollinator and plant species networks on Agricultural v's Town Park sites

- Bramble was really important on both sites for pollinators.
- Ragwort and buttercups were important on Agricultural sites.
- Thistle species and white clover on Town Parks.



Assessing the impacts of glyphosate and its alternatives on vegetation and the soil microbiome, using six different treatments

- T1: Control
- T2: Roundup Flex (glyphosate)
- T3: Nomix (glyphosate)
- T4: Strim/Mow
- T5: New Way (acetic acid)
- T6: Hot Foam
- Vegetation surveys and soil samples taken for DNA extraction for Bacteria and Fungi
- The main issues with the road verge experiments
 - There is a small gap between the cycle lane/footpath.
 - This area at approximately 2cm wide and is proving difficult to clear of vegetation.
 - Uneven quantities of vegetation in previous experiment
 - In October 2023, another set of experiments were conducted on the intersection alone using 5 treatments.

• Results 2024 - post treatment 9 weeks and 18 weeks

- 9 weeks All significant in comparison to the Control, especially the Hot foam and Roundup Flex.
- 18 weeks All still significant except for the Nomix.
- Roundup Flex most effective, followed by Hot foam.
- Hot foam had a higher abundance of saprotrophs potentially decomposing greater quantities of dead vegetation after 12 weeks post treatment
- The Hot foam seemed to show different groupings of fungi under the hot foam treatment than the rest of the treatments after 12 weeks.
- Nomix also seemed to show slightly different groupings too.
- The team wanted to know how our management practices of public open spaces are connected to Carbon capture and emissions.
 - This was explored by analysing the soil organic carbon levels in soils treated with different plant control approaches.
 - These included, glyphosate, no mix, new way (acetic acid)
 - Used Soil from the Kinsealy Experiment



- The results showed that Organic C increased over the 14 weeks (expected) in all treatments except Rup and No Mix- Glyphosate affecting carbon storage?
- Killing plants removes their ability to capture C but may also result in C release from soil.
- The main story about the Carbon work is that as the season goes on the amount of organic C increases in the soil.
- This was seen for all treatments except the two glyphosate ones.
- This could mean a few things, but the message could be that not only does
 glyphosate remove the plant it also removes the ability of the plant to capture
 carbon and perhaps accelerates the release of carbon from the soil too.
- It was very preliminary but definitely worth following up.

The members raised the following:

- Thanked Ms P O'Rourke and her team for the presentation and commended their work.
- Was hot foam the prefrerred option, there were weeds growing along the sides of footpaths causing damage, the engineers were now designing the gaps out of future paths.
- Did the climate action team have any dealings with Coillte to see what way biodiversity in forests works.
- They received many queries on weeds/untidy look of weeds in the Municipal District,
 would Hot Foam be used in all Kildare County Council owned spaces going forward?
- Commended Kildare Climate Action team for pioneering the works which could be used nationally and in the EU.
- Would like to see further evidence of how cost effective the use of hot foam would be.

Ms P O'Rourke advised the following:

They were currently looking at maintaining Open Spaces and not woodlands. They
were working with Waterways Ireland and the GAA.



Weeds were now considered native flora and were needed for insects. People
needed to be educated on basic biodiversity. Going forward more research was
needed but currently the preferred option would be hot foam.

AY16/0325

Part 8 Report for Ardrew Halting Site, Athy

The members considered the Chief Executive's Part 8 report for the proposed development at Ardrew Halting Site, Athy, Planning Ref No. P82024.03

Ms A Dutczak gave a presentation to the members outlining the following:

- Proposed works included:
 - o Refurbishment of existing two Day Houses,
 - Proposed five new Group Housing Units
 - One three-bed unit suitable for five people and four five-bed, age friendly units suitable for nine people.
 - Replacement of Caretaker Unit
 - Associated landscaping and groundworks.
- There were five submissions
 - Two from Kildare County Council internal departments.
 - Two from prescribed bodies.
 - One from a member of the public.

The members raised the following points:

- Thanked Ms A Dutczak for the presentation.
- What was the timeline for the project?
- Would there be a change to the entrance as there were currently visibility issues.
- The councils response time to antisocial behaviour needed to be addressed,
 improved reaction time would be a comfort to other residents.
- There were issues with items being thrown over the wall of the site.



- Was the day house adaptable for future needs/requirements etc could be used as housing?
- Would the residents be living on site during the works?

Ms A Dutczak advised that:

- The intention was to have a more open feel to the entrance and it would have better visibility from the road.
- Hopeful to go out to tender this summer and be on site by the end of 2025. This
 project would be carried out in stages. The plan was to build the group houses first,
 then refurbish the day house.
- Proposed to build a 2.4 metre boundary wall to address the issue of items being thrown over the wall.
- Residents would remain living on site while works were being carried out, it would be
 up to the contractor to manage the site but there would be little disturbance to the
 residents while the first phase of works was completed.

Mr P Henderson added that the day house could be turned into accessible housing in the future.

Councillor Breslin thanked the architects department for their work and advised that a new development for Athy was very welcome.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Dooley, seconded by Councillor Behan and agreed by all members present that the Chief Executives Part 8 report for the Proposed Ardrew Halting Site, Athy, Planning Ref No. P82024.03 be approved.

AY17/0325

Window and Door Replacement Schedule

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Breslin.



Can the council confirm how many units on the window and door replacement schedule in the Athy Municipal District will receive new windows and doors this year and when the works will commence?

A report was received from the Housing and Regeneration Department informing the members that based on the current available budget, six properties in the Athy Municipal District are scheduled to receive full replacement of windows and doors in 2025 through the Council's Window and Door Replacement Programme. Works are expected to commence later this year, with timelines subject to contractor availability and procurement processes. In addition to the planned replacements, the Council remains committed to addressing any issues with faulty or broken windows and doors. Any such cases that are brought to our attention will be reviewed, and repairs will be carried out where feasible. Where repair is not possible, the need for replacement will be assessed on a case-by-case basis subject to available resources.

If further updates become available regarding additional funding or programme expansion, the Council will provide an update accordingly.

Councillor Breslin was extremely disappointed with the report and the lack of funding available. She advised that many older estates were waiting on window and door replacements. She asked that a letter be sent to the department to highlight how inadequate the funding was and to seek further funding.

Councillor Keatley questioned if there was any SEAI grant funding available to council properties.

Ms E Price advised that she would check if any other funding streams were available and come back to the members.

The report was noted.



AY18/0325

Information Screens in Athy, Castledermot and Ballitore Libraries

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Behan.

That the council considers installing information screens in Athy, Castledermot and Ballitore Libraries.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Behan and seconded by Councillor Dooley.

A report was received informing the members that Kildare Library Service has internal information screens in the majority of our main library branches.

Where possible they are also now included in the planning stage and detailed design for all future capital projects.

The content for these screens is created and uploaded by the library team in the branch and includes information on Library and Arts services and events happening both locally and countywide.

There are currently two internal information screens in Athy Library providing constantly updated information.

Athy, Ballitore and Castledermot Library buildings are included in the Kildare County Council Register of Protected Structures and therefore have protected status.

Any proposal to include screens on the outside of the buildings or to locate them in the curtilage of the buildings would require planning permission.

We would also require the support of a conservation architect to identify appropriate locations and provide advice on obtaining the necessary planning approval.

Installation of internal or external screens in the three libraries would have to be considered as part of the overall library budget. There is currently no available funding to cover the cost of purchase, installation and associated costs.

In addition, as Ballitore and Castledermot Libraries are located in areas with little on street passing traffic and footfall, the use of social media could be considered a more impactful and cost-effective way of sharing information on services and events locally.

We encourage all Library users to sign up to the monthly Library Newsletter and to follow us on social media to obtain current information on library services and upcoming events. Councillor Behan thanked the team for the report and advised that she understood the planning aspect but did not see the difficulty in applying. Use of digital screens was the way forward and would attract new library users. She advised that the library in Castledermot had to tie notices to the railings outside which was not a good look. The library service were doing a great job. The population was increasing which would hopefully lead to higher footfall.

Councillor Dooley advised that if there were planning difficulties outside of libraries, digital boards could be moved to the towns and could also provide tourism information.

The District Manager advised that the report had valid points of low footfall, protected structures, and budgets etc. He added that he would feed the points raised back to the libraries team.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Behan and seconded by Councillor Dooley that the report be noted.

AY19/0325

Carlow to Maynooth Bus Schedule

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Behan.

That this council writes to JJ Kavanagh and Sons requesting their Carlow to Maynooth bus to stop in Castledermot to facilitate students from Athy Municipal District who need to commute for College.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Behan and seconded by Councillor Dooley

A report was received informing the members that this is a matter for the members to agree on.

Councillor Behan advised that she had contacted JJ Kavanaghs about their current service and asked for the members support. There was already a bus stop in place in Castledermot that could facilitate this stop. She added that the 880 route had been a huge success and was hopeful that this could do the same. There was a lack of student accommodation, public transport was very important for commuters. The demand for a stop was definitely there.

The members raised the following:

- Could Local Link be incorporated into any discussions.
- JJ Kavanagh had previously attended a Municipal District meeting a number of years ago.
- There were a lot of students within the Municipal District attending Maynooth University.
- Private operators needed to link in with Local Link.
- Rural areas with students were isolated including Castledermot and Kilgowan.
- A forum to coordinate these rural services was needed.
- There was only one service a week in Kilgowan, the bus from Waterford could stop.

Resolved on the proposal of Councillor Behan and seconded by Councillor Dooley that the report be noted and a letter be sent to JJ Kavanaghs.

AY20/0325

Progress in the taking in charge of Abbeylands/Lerr Road Estate

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Leigh.

Can the council inform members of progress in the taking in charge of Abbeylands/Lerr

Road Estate in Castledermot?

A report was received from Building and Development Control informing the members that Abbeylands forms part of the legacy taking in charge portfolio. The legacy team are prioritising estates based on date of receipt of a valid taking in charge request. Estates with



a taking in charge request prior to 2019 are currently being prioritised. Development Control received a valid taking in charge request in June 2024. It may be feasible to begin investigative works in Abbeylands later this year however, this is subject to progression of current estates on the active priority list.

Councillor Leigh thanked the team for the report and for resolving some of the issues in these legacy estates in the Municipal District in the last number of years. Residents were waiting on works and he was hopeful that they would be carried out sooner rather than later.

Councillor Keatley questioned if the previous LPT allocation of €45,000 had been spent.

The District Manager commended the work of the Building and Development Control team. There had been many success stories in the last number of years. Works were carried out depending on resources/budgets and understood that it was a busy area,

Mr L McNeela advised that there was significant work carried out in Athy Municipal District in 2024 so other areas would be looked at this year, he added that he would check if the money had been spent.

The report was noted.

AY21/0325

Sewage Blockage on the Geraldine Road, Athy

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Dooley.

Can the council confirm if there is a sewage blockage on the Geraldine Road, Athy at the traffic lights and at the corner of Leinster Street?



A report was received informing the members that Uisce Eireann have been contacted via the dedicated email address in relation to this issue. As soon as correspondence is received members will be notified.

Councillor Dooley advised that he had logged this a number of times but was yet to receive a response. With the opening of the Shackleton Museum and Emily Square the smell and blockage needed to be addressed. Could the report be circulated to members.

The Meetings Administrator agreed to circulate the report to members once it was to hand.

The report was noted.

The meeting concluded.